

# Student Learning and Grading Guidance

## STUDENT LEARNING AND GRADING GUIDANCE

## 2020

## Chris Reykdal Superintendent of Public Instruction

#### **Prepared by:**

- Dr. Michaela W. Miller, Ed.D., NBCT, Deputy Superintendent michaela.miller@k12.wa.us | 360-725-6343
- Cindy Rockholt, NBCT, Assistant Superintendent of Educator Growth and Development

cindy.rockholt@k12.wa.us | 360-725-6442

Tennille Jeffries-Simmons, Assistant Superintendent of System and School
Improvement

tennille.jeffries-simmons@k12.wa.us | 360-725-4960

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Letter from Superintendent Reykdalii
OSPI Vision, Mission, Values, and Equity1
Background2
Student Learning and Grading Stakeholders2
Acknowledgements4
Emergency Rulemaking5
Summary of Stakeholder Feedback7
Guidance on Grading in Continuous Learning9
Considerations about Student Learning and Grading during Continuous Learning9
Considerations about Washington State Learning Standards during Continuous Learning10
Conclusion13
Bibliography14
Legal Notice

## LETTER FROM SUPERINTENDENT REYKDAL

Every aspect of our American experience has been impacted by the novel coronavirus, COVID-19. Around the world, 1.6 billion students are out of "traditional" school, including 53 million U.S. students; 1.1 million of whom are Washington state public school students. We are not alone, and we are not losing ground to other nations or other states—the entire planet is facing this crisis.

As the impacts of the virus have unfolded, we have provided guidance to school districts and policymakers. We have grounded our work in three core principles: compassion, communication, and common sense. We have focused our system on continuous learning with a deep understanding that distance learning models often exacerbate existing inequities. We value deeply our state's long history of local control, but we acknowledge that in some areas of education and fiscal policy, the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) is granted explicit legal authority to create statewide consistency and statewide accountability. Policy related to the awarding of high school credit is one of the areas OSPI has significant legal authority.

As the learning continues, K–12 system leaders, educators, parents/guardians, and students have asked OSPI to provide more detailed guidance related to student grading policies—most specifically for high school level, credit-bearing courses. An examination of grading practices uncovers deeply held, decades old debates around what constitutes student learning.

Is learning:

- A test score on a statewide assessment?
- A 10-point vocabulary quiz?
- Students learning from each other, independent of direct supervision of a teacher?
- Students creating a better understanding through project-based learning?
- Student report cards which reflect marks of 4-3-2-1 or A, B, C, D, or F?

In high schools, our students face post-secondary consequences that are the difference between gaining access to good paying jobs and health benefits or not. Grading implicates hundreds of millions of dollars in scholarship opportunities. Grading systems can impact military recruiting, college athletics, access to college majors, and more. But grading systems also shine a spotlight on the inequities of an education system that despite real progress, still functions in high correlation to family income and access to enrichment activities.

To put it simply, we have built a national education system at the high school level around seat time and grades, even as the experts have challenged us to think more critically about deeper learning, critical thinking, and problem solving. It is why Washington state has been moving away from tasks, worksheets, and voluminous assignments and instead toward more focus on powerful learning standards. What students should know and be able to do is a far more important question than how many assignments they turn in on time. Now is a moment for learning standards!

In this global crisis, teachers are overwhelmed, parents and guardians are overwhelmed, and many of our students are overwhelmed. Getting through all the chapters and all the assignments is not our priority right now. Checking in with students and families and offering continuous learning against a handful of critical standards is our need. Together, we have eight weeks to ensure that all our students have the most essential building blocks in place to achieve success in their next class, their next grade, and in their next pursuit.

For these reasons and after much thoughtful counsel from education stakeholders, I have made the decision to eliminate the pass/fail grading option as a matter of state policy. It is neither equitable, informative of student learning, nor is there a guarantee that it won't harm students in future educational pursuits.

#### This guidance and subsequent rule adoption will focus on the following framework:

- Students in grades K–8 will be challenged to demonstrate effort and success in learning standards established by their teachers. Students will move on to the next grade, unless by mutual agreement between parents/guardians and teachers they agree to repeat a grade or a portion of learning missed. Districts will retain complete decision-making on middle school grading practices for students not taking high school credit-bearing courses.
- 2. Grades 9–12 and middle school students taking credit-bearing high school level work will be graded using the following principles:
  - a. Do no harm!
  - b. Every student will get an opportunity to improve their grade with their March 17 status as a baseline.
  - c. No student will receive a "pass," "fail," or "no credit" grade for any course.
  - d. Teachers will assign grades or assign an "incomplete" for students that cannot engage in an equitable way.
  - e. Every class taken during the closure period will be given a statewide designator on the high school transcript to demote the unique environment in which the course was taken.
  - f. Students assigned an "incomplete" for a course will be given opportunities to reengage in the learning standards based on local school district decisions in consultation with the student/parents/guardians, including but not limited to:
    - i. Summer school,
    - ii. Courses in the following term or year,
    - iii. Independent study,

- iv. Competency-based courses,
- v. Online courses, or
- vi. Backfilling the incomplete grade with the letter grade obtained in the next course taken in that subject area.
- g. All students will be given an opportunity to engage in continuous learning to maintain or improve their mastery of essential standards.

This statewide framework will create more consistency across the state, but districts will still decide which letter grade system to use. However, "F's" will not be an option. This is a very complex problem, and I am incredibly grateful to the parents, students, and educators across the state who offered their ideas and input.

Sincerely,

Chris Reykdal State Superintendent of Public Instruction

## OSPI VISION, MISSION, VALUES, AND EQUITY

## Vision

All students prepared for post-secondary pathways, careers, and civic engagement.

## Mission

Transform K–12 education to a system that is centered on closing opportunity gaps and is characterized by high expectations for all students and educators. We achieve this by developing equity-based policies and supports that empower educators, families, and communities.

### Values

- Ensuring Equity
- Collaboration and Service
- Achieving Excellence through Continuous Improvement
- Focus on the Whole Child

#### **Equity Statement**

Each student, family, and community possess strengths and cultural knowledge that benefits their peers, educators, and schools. Ensuring educational equity:

- Goes beyond equality; it requires education leaders to examine the ways current policies and practices result in disparate outcomes for our students of color, students living in poverty, students receiving special education and English Learner services, students who identify as LGBTQ+, and highly mobile student populations.
- Requires education leaders to develop an understanding of historical contexts; engage students, families, and community representatives as partners in decision making; and actively dismantle systemic barriers, replacing them with policies and practices that ensure all students have access to the instruction and support they need to succeed in our schools.

## BACKGROUND

Governor Inslee ordered schools to be closed from providing traditional in-person instruction by March 17, 2020. In the following days, school districts began serving meals to students and providing limited child care services for the children of essential employees. As of March 30, 2020, all Washington school districts are engaged in continuous learning for the remainder of the 2019–20 school year. With stakeholder input, OSPI developed the <u>Continuous Learning 2020</u> resource to guide and support school districts.

Continuous learning requires educators to think about the enduring concepts of content; learning being for learning's sake, without the expectation of covering a specific content or subject area; developmentally appropriate tasks or projects that provide opportunities for students to engage meaningfully in content through different ways; and providing feedback to students in a variety of ways. Students are introduced to concepts and explore content while applying their learning and self-assessing in a way that demonstrates learning and progression in grade level standards as established by Washington State Learning Standards.

Instruction and student assignments, as is done when school is in session in school facilities, will not occur in the same way or at the same pace. Specific information about student learning time can be found on page 46 of the Continuous Learning 2020 publication. Consistent with those student learning times, districts, teachers and school principals determine which Washington State Student Learning content standards, skills, and knowledge are most essential for success in the next course, content, or grade level.

For the remainder of the 2019–20 school year, learning will be different, and content will have to be pared back and adjusted. Without a vaccine, continuous learning at a distance may extend into the next school year in some form. Grading practices during this time should cause no harm to students. Grades should be based on the principles of equity, fairness, and accuracy.

#### **Student Learning and Grading Stakeholders**

A small stakeholder group of practitioners and education leaders were engaged by OSPI to provide recommendations and feedback. Many of these stakeholders participated in a similar meeting at the end of March to inform OSPI's Continuous Learning 2020 resource. The foremost concern of workgroup participants and OSPI was equity for students and families. Though there were topics discussed that found broad agreement with the stakeholders, there were also topics discussed in which workgroup members had varying opinions. Workgroup members provided rich conversation and differing perspectives.

Participants met virtually on Tuesday, April 14. The timing of the workgroup was driven by two factors; first, school districts have communicated an immediate need for guidance on grading to establish more uniformity across the state in these unprecedented times; the second was an agency commitment to be judicious with the amount of time this workgroup would require these educators to be away from their jobs and their families.

#### **Elementary School**

*Amy Campbell*, Special Education Teacher 2020 Washington State Teacher of the Year Camas SD

*Glenn Jenkins*, Teacher Auburn SD

Maribel Vilchez, NBCT English Learner Teacher North Thurston PS PESB Board Member

#### **Middle School**

*Joshua Boe*, Paraeducator Olympia SD

*Sara Ketelsen*, NBCT Math Teacher Tacoma SD

Shelly Milne, NBCT AVID/Library Teacher Cashmere SD PESB Board Member

#### **High School**

*Beth McGibbon*, NBCT AP/History Teacher Spokane SD

*Rita Peterson*, Special Education Teacher Stanwood-Camano SD

*Tamara Whitcomb*, Career and Technical Education Teacher Mt. Baker SD

#### Areas of Specialty

*Becky Smith Conklin*, NBCT Counselor Chehalis SD

#### **District Leadership**

*Annie Wolfley*, Director of Teaching and Learning Cheney SD

*Jennifer Priddy*, Assistant Superintendent Olympia SD

*Kimberly Fry,* Superintendent Rochester SD

Dr. Lisa Cadero-Smith, Assistant Superintendent Yelm Community Schools

*Michelle Whitney,* Superintendent Pasco SD

*Dr. Scott Mauk*, Principal Edmonds SD

Dr. Tammy Campbell Superintendent Federal Way SD

#### **Education Partners**

Abigail Westbrook Director of Policy and Legal Services WSSDA

*Brenda Rogers*, WSSDA President Bethel SD Board Member

*Gina Yonts*, Associate Director AWSP

*Holly Koon*, Washington State Board of Education Board Member Teacher Mt. Baker SD *Kurt Hatch*, Associate Director AWSP

*Rick Jansons*, WSSDA President-elect Richland SD Board Member

Scott Friedman, Associate Director AWSP

*Tim Garchow*, Executive Director WSSDA

#### Observers

*Dr. Carli Schiffner*, Deputy Executive Director of Education SBCTC

*Helene Paroff*, Assistant Executive Director WASA

*Janel Keating,* Superintendent White River SD

Jessica Vavrus, Executive Director Association of ESDs (AESD)

*Nate Humphrey*, Director of Workforce Education SBCTC

Dr. Randy Spaulding Executive Director Washington State Board of Education

*Tani Lindquist*, Council President/PE Teacher WEA

## Acknowledgements

Special thanks to OSPI staff for their dedication and tireless efforts to lead this critical work.

## **EMERGENCY RULEMAKING**

The Superintendent of Public Instruction will adopt emergency rules that will require school districts to continue using grades to assess student learning for the purpose of high school credit-bearing courses for the last semester or trimester of the 2019–20 school year. **The rules prohibit a binary pass/no-credit system, and they prohibit failing grades from being issued to students.** 

Several state statutes authorize OSPI to adopt the emergency rules, including RCW 28A.150.290(2) (OSPI can set the terms and conditions for allowing a school district to receive state basic education moneys when school facilities are closed due to an epidemic), RCW 28A.230.100 (OSPI may grant temporary exemptions from and special alterations to course requirements), and RCW 28A.230.125 (OSPI must develop a standardized high school transcript for the use of all public school districts).

As part of a school district's continuous learning efforts, school districts should proceed in a manner which causes no harm to students in terms of grading. Throughout the school facility closure, OSPI has committed to three primary principles: compassion, communication, and common sense. These decisions and guidance for student learning and grading are grounded in equity, fairness, and accuracy.

#### Local determinations must be consistent with the following principles:

- Do no harm. Student grades will not be negatively impacted as a result of the March 17 building closures or of continuous learning through the end of the 2019–20 school year.
- Districts will continue using grades as a means of communicating student progress and determining high school credit (RCW 28A.150.240). However, no student will receive a failing grade for any class during the COVID-19 closure period.
- Districts are obligated to provide students multiple opportunities to demonstrate their proficiency in order to earn a passing grade. Districts can consider awarding an Incomplete (I) to students not on track for course completion or not yet proficient during the period of March 17 through the end of the 2019–20 school year. In such instances, a plan for course completion should be developed and followed.
- Attendance will not be a factor when determining student grades (RCW 28A.600.030). Districts will be expected to take attendance consistent with their continuous learning plan; however, attendance will not be a factor when determining student grades or as a condition of receiving apportionment.
- Districts, teachers, and principals determine which Washington State Student Learning Standards, skills, and knowledge are most essential for success in the next course,

content, or grade level for the remainder of the 2019–20 school year. Learning will be different, and content will have to be pared back and adjusted.

- Teachers will continue with their responsibility to evaluate and communicate student educational growth and progress to families and to administrators on a periodic basis (RCW 28A.150.240).
- All transcripts for a grading term, semester, quarter, or trimester that included closure days in the 2019–20 school year due to the COVID-19 emergency will have a COVID-19 designation.
- School districts should not hold students and families accountable for truancy rules through the end of the 2019–20 school year.
- Competency-based credit as adopted by school boards are not affected by this emergency rule.
- Any determinations that rely on the professional judgment of the building principal or designee in determining whether or not a credit meets the district's standards for recognition and acceptance of a credit must be consistent with the principles above.

Required by Emergency Rule	Local Flexibility
Districts must identify essential standards, skills, and knowledge for success in the next course content or grade level.	Districts determine which essential standards are needed for the next grade level or course and the process through which those standards are identified
Must use a locally determined letter grade or numerical standards-based (1–4) grading system which will not include "F"	Districts may determine the letter grades or numerical decision (e.g., A, B, C, Incomplete; or A, B, Incomplete; or 4, 3, 2, Incomplete, etc.)
Must provide feedback from teachers for students to improve their proficiency and grades	Identify Incomplete or Not Proficient to determine whether a student needs more support before moving to the next grade level or course
Implement Individualized Education Program (IEP) and 504 accommodations	Determine how spring 2020 student learning and grading will impact grade level and course placement for the upcoming 2020–21 school year.
	Districts determine how non-credit-bearing K– 8 courses will be graded

## SUMMARY OF STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK

The stakeholder group was presented with various research articles and reports on student learning and grading. Questions on these topics have emerged through school district superintendents and school directors. In addition, Dr. Douglas Reeves of Creative Leadership Solutions joined the workgroup as a special participant, contributor, and expert on the relationship between state learning standards and student learning. Stakeholder group members discussed the immense complexity of the topics addressed through this guidance; members shared a collective desire to provide advice to OSPI that would serve Washington schools, families, and communities well.

The stakeholder group reviewed the draft documents thoroughly, considering its content based on their experiences as practitioners and education leaders. They provided feedback and engaged in discussions to provide recommendations to Superintendent Reykdal.

The foremost concern of workgroup participants and OSPI was equity for students and families. Though there were topics discussed that found broad agreement with the stakeholders, there were also topics that were discussed in which workgroup members had varying opinions. Workgroup members provided rich conversation and differing perspectives.

A description of themes that were woven throughout the feedback and advice provided by the stakeholder group is below.

## **Equity is First**

Education policies, practices, and decisions impact students. Washington's decisions on student learning and grading should lessen, not ignore or worsen, disparities. A lack of uniformity (on student learning and grading) will harm historically underserved students and families. Students and families do not have universal access to technology and supports. Students and families are experiencing an unprecedented pandemic, which may impact their mental, physical, and emotional health and create trauma. School buildings act as a leveling factor for many students. School districts are responsible for monitoring the impact of decisions on individual student groups.

#### **Communication is Key**

Student learning and grading necessarily involves families whether school facilities are open or closed. Decisions need to be transparent and communicated effectively to families as partners in student success. Avoid jargon and focus instead on describing recommended practices and behaviors.

#### All are Learning

For the remainder of the 2019–20 school year, students, families, and educators will all be learning together. Grades communicate student progress on content standards and how students are acquiring the skills and knowledge that are most essential for success in the next course, content area, grade level, or pursuit.

## GUIDANCE ON GRADING IN CONTINUOUS LEARNING

Assessing student learning is at the core of our K–12 education system. "Evaluating each student's educational growth and development and making periodic reports thereon to parents, guardians, or custodians and to school administrators" is one of the fundamental responsibilities of certificated classroom teachers (RCW 28A.150.240).

There are a variety of considerations for school districts to weigh as they review their grading policies during this period of continuous learning during school facility closures. Districts should view their existing policies and practices with the lens of equity and doing no harm to students. To promote consistency for students and families statewide, Superintendent Reykdal will enact his rulemaking authority for determination of high school credits. The remainder of this document offers school districts questions to consider and examples of various ways to implement the rules outlined above.

### **Considerations about Student Learning and Grading during Continuous Learning**

#### **Overarching K–12 Questions for Districts and School Leaders**

- How are schools and teachers using established connections to support the socialemotional well-being of students and educators?
- How are schools communicating about student learning progress and supporting relationships with families during continuous learning?
- How are districts and schools supporting the educators in the identification of key learning standards for grade levels and courses?
- How are districts and schools supporting teachers to provide meaningful feedback to students to allow for multiple opportunities for success in demonstrating their learning?
- How are districts and schools supporting teachers connecting with each student?
- How are districts and schools supporting teachers to provide multiple opportunities for students to master a standard(s) through practice before they receive a grade?
- How are districts and schools supporting teachers in determining the key activities and deliverables students will use to demonstrate knowledge and proficiency of a standard?

#### Washington State Learning Standards and Grading

Standards-based grading is one approach that districts may use for both credit and for noncredit-bearing courses. This approach to assessing student learning has been well documented as a valid alternative to traditional grading practices and is correlated to higher academic achievement. Standards-based grading requires careful planning and training for educators. Communication with families about the transition from a traditional grading system to a standards-based approach must be a priority and will take some time. Districts might consider this work over the summer and into the fall.

Districts that have not engaged in the preparation, training, and communication for a meaningful implementation of standards-based grading may find value in using some best practices, which include:

- Grade on student progress toward standard separate from non-academic influences.
- Teachers can separately communicate a student's progress on behavior or other nonacademic influences on students.
- Grade on standards that were deemed essential by the teacher for the remainder of the year.
- Teachers provide ongoing feedback to students.

More best practice suggestions can be found in the articles referenced in the bibliography and can be constructed using the questions below.

#### **Considerations about Washington State Learning Standards during Continuous Learning**

#### **Overarching K–12 Questions for Educators**

- How will teachers and principals determine which standards are considered essential for each grade/course?
- How will standards progress/proficiency be assessed?
- How will educators provide students with multiple opportunities to demonstrate understanding? What platforms, student packets (print-based materials), and media will students be able to utilize?
- In what ways will teachers assess student learning? Will the assessment include multiple metrics and formative opportunities (like a portfolio composed of a collection of student work)?

- How will teachers incorporate student choice and voice in how they demonstrate their learning?
- How will teachers provide the necessary instruction and guidance for students to make progress in the identified essential standards?
- How will interventions be used for students who struggle to meet the essential standards?
- How will IEP and 504 Plan accommodations be implemented?
- How will teachers communicate assignment expectations and due dates to students and families? How will teachers collect student work?
- How will schools support student learning and growth of each specific student group included on OSPI's Report Card?
- How will teachers make decisions about which standards they need to revisit and how they will provide stretch opportunities?
- How will teachers encourage students to engage with peers to work collaboratively to strengthen individual learning?

In addition to key planning questions, the stakeholder group recommended that OSPI provide various examples from around the state. Some of the following examples are similar and demonstrate various approaches to communication in response to local needs and interests for that particular district and community.

The goals of each of the following examples are:

- Empower professionals in our system to determine the necessary student learning standards, skills, and knowledge for the remainder of the year.
- Provide clarity and consistency for families, keeping in mind families that have multiple students engaged in learning across the district.
- Mitigate loss of learning by providing opportunity to practice key skills and knowledge.
- Ensure teacher feedback and communication about student learning progress.
- Provide opportunity to gain proficiency on standards taught prior to school facilities closure.
- Prepare for transitions from one grade level or one course to another.

Below are three actual implementation examples from Washington state districts that are focused on "do no harm" while giving student grade improvement options.

#### Example #1

Teachers will use the grade at the time of the school facility closure (March 17) and give students a specific time-bound period (i.e., 2–3 weeks) to make up any previous missing work from the beginning of the grading period (beginning of semester or trimester). Teachers will plan their remaining instruction based on the questions above and provide all students with the option to maintain their grade at that level or increase it with additional coursework. This provides a "do no harm" approach to learning for the remainder of the year.

Districts will establish a date after which no work can be considered in improving a grade. For example:

- K–8 and 9–11 grade students have until June 11 to submit work to improve grade.
- High school seniors can submit completed work with the intent to increase a grade up to June 3.
- Districts may choose to determine senior awards based on 1st semester cumulated GPA.

#### Example #2

<u>Grade carry forward</u>: The student's 3rd quarter secondary grade or 2nd trimester elementary grade will carry forward to the final grading period. For example, if a student had a "B" grade for 3rd quarter, the 4th quarter grade will also be a "B." Students will continue to be introduced to new learning around essential skills and knowledge for the remainder of the year in order to maintain their "carry forward" grade.

<u>Grade improvement</u>: The student may choose to complete work to improve their final grade. Students choosing to complete work to improve their grade should contact their teacher(s). Teachers will determine work to assign and, upon completion, assess whether the student completed the work at a satisfactory level to improve the final grade. Teachers are not required to assign individual letter grades for each individual assignment but provide feedback for grade improvement purposes.

#### Example #3 (For systems already engaged in standards-based grading)

<u>Previously taught standards</u>: Students and teachers will work collaboratively to identify and review previously taught (prior to March 17 closure) skills for proficiency. These skills will be graded and reflected in the gradebook or report card. This provides all students with the option to maintain their grade at that level or to increase it with additional coursework. This provides a "do no harm" approach to learning for the remainder of the 2019–20 school year.

<u>New learning</u>: During remote learning, students will be introduced to new learning and selfassessing in a way that demonstrates progression of learning. This is for practice only and will not be graded or count toward the final grade. Teachers will provide feedback as appropriate. <u>Final grades/credits</u>: At the end of the semester, report cards will be provided to families. The grade is based on partial standards and up to a point in time (up to March 17). Credit will be awarded based on final grades.

Use the report card to communicate, at a certain point in time, student progress. Student progress includes two distinct types of information: achievement of academic standards and behaviors that promote learning. When communicating grades, these two factors should be separated.

## CONCLUSION

This is a time of learning and transition for educators, for families, and for the 1.1 million public school students across our state. We are facing unprecedented challenges, identifying solutions, and engaging flexibly as the uncertainty around the pandemic continues. When making these decisions, the agency has considered both the immediate and the long-term implications for instruction and for learning statewide.

Finally, we appreciate those individuals both inside and outside of the agency who have contributed to this guidance. Your leadership and experiences have supported our continued focus on compassion, communication, and common sense.

## **BIBLIOGRAPHY**

- Hattie, J. (2020, April). Visible Learning Effect Sizes When Schools Are Closed: What Matters and What Does Not. <u>https://drive.google.com/file/d/1cbl-myWJEg2ZtJ-</u> <u>L3uoLKUGplYcuJCZO/view?fbclid=lwAR3Rn4SwhXa 99 Zith4-</u> <u>Q8upN4WV7X4bR63JY1Kx4bTiDFS7UtHGH0iKWA</u>
- Muñoz, M. A., & Guskey, T. R. (2015). Standards-based grading and reporting will improve education. *Phi Delta Kappan*, *96*(7), 64–68. <u>https://doi.org/10.1177/0031721715579043</u>
- NCAA. (2020, April 17). *Divisions I and II members adjust initial-eligibility requirements* [Press release]. Retrieved from <u>http://www.ncaa.org/about/resources/media-</u> <u>center/news/divisions-i-and-ii-members-adjust-initial-eligibility-requirements</u>
- Reeves, D. (2020). Executive Summary: Principles and Practices for Equitable and Accurate Grading and Feedback for Spring 2020. <u>https://drive.google.com/file/d/16lyzklvnPZNJD9Y-</u> <u>YfavVol4UZEuRcS4/view</u>
- Townsley, M., & Buckmiller, T. (2016). What does the research say about standards-based grading? A research primer. Retrieved from <u>https://files.eric.ed.gov/fulltext/ED590391.pdf</u>

Washington State Council of Presidents, Washington State Board of Community & Technical Colleges, & Independent Colleges of Washington. (2020, April 9). A Message from Washington's Colleges and Universities to Washington's Students: What to Know and Consider as You Plan Ahead During the COVID-19 Crisis [Press release]. Retrieved from https://drive.google.com/file/d/1g9gDQw5LpFBw5JfphebWW-bpcy1d4 2d/view

## LEGAL NOTICE



*Except where otherwise noted, this work by the <u>Office of Superintendent of Public</u> <u>Instruction</u> is licensed under a <u>Creative Commons Attribution License.</u>* 

Alternate material licenses with different levels of user permission are clearly indicated next to the specific content in the materials.

This resource may contain links to websites operated by third parties. These links are provided for your convenience only and do not constitute or imply any endorsement or monitoring by OSPI.

If this work is adapted, note the substantive changes and re-title, removing any Washington Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction logos. Provide the following attribution:

"This resource was adapted from original materials provided by the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction. Original materials may be accessed on the OSPI website."

Please make sure that permission has been received to use all elements of this publication (images, charts, text, etc.) that are not created by OSPI staff, grantees, or contractors. This permission should be displayed as an attribution statement in the manner specified by the copyright holder. It should be made clear that the element is one of the "except where otherwise noted" exceptions to the OSPI open license.

For additional information, please visit the OSPI Interactive Copyright and Licensing Guide.

OSPI provides equal access to all programs and services without discrimination based on sex, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, sexual orientation including gender expression or identity, the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability, or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability. Questions and complaints of alleged discrimination should be directed to the Equity and Civil Rights Director at 360-725-6162 or P.O. Box 47200 Olympia, WA 98504-7200.

Download this material in PDF from the COVID-19 Guidance & Resources page on the OSPI website (<u>https://www.k12.wa.us/about-ospi/press-releases/novel-coronavirus-covid-19-guidance-resources</u>). This material is available in alternative format upon request. Contact the Resource Center at 888-595-3276, TTY 360-664-3631. Please refer to this document number for quicker service: 20-0007.



All students prepared for post-secondary pathways, careers, and civic engagement.



Washington Office of Superintendent of **PUBLIC INSTRUCTION** 

**Chris Reykdal** | State Superintendent Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction Old Capitol Building | P.O. Box 47200 Olympia, WA 98504-7200